
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

POLICE ADVISORY BOARD 

MEETING PACKET 

 

FOR 

 

Thursday, June 16, 2016 

7 p.m. 

 

Sherwood Police Department 

20495 SW Borchers Drive 

Sherwood, OR 97140 

 

 



 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
  

 

 

Police Advisory Board 

Date & Time:  Thursday -  June 16, 2016 7:00pm 

Location:  Sherwood Police Community Room 

20495 SW Borchers Dr., Sherwood, OR 
 

Attendees 

 

Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order (Chair) 

2. Roll Call (Chair/Staff) 

3. Approval of Minutes (Chair) 

a. April 21st Meeting 

4. Business (Chair) 

a. Follow-Up discussions: 

i. Recreational Marijuana-Proposed Code Amendments 

5. Councilor News 

6. Staff Report(s) 

7. Citizen Comment 

8. Adjourn (Chair) 

 

 

 

 

 

P.A.B. Members: Council Liaison: 

Laurie Zwingli-Chair Linda Henderson 

Bob Silverforb-Vice Chair City Staff: 

Diane Foster Jeff Groth-Police Chief 

Sean Garland Angie Hass-Executive Assistant 

Dave McCart  Michelle Miller-Planning Department 

Rich Miller  

Amy Miller-Juvé  

Chris West  

Vacant  



DRAFT 

Date: May 26, 2016 

Proposed Community Development Code Amendments  

Re: Recreational Marijuana Facilities 

All proposed new language to be added to the Definitions Section:  § 16.10.020   

Marijuana Processing. A building or structure used in whole or in part for processing recreational marijuana as defined 

in Chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015 as the processing, compounding or conversion of marijuana into cannabinoid 

products, cannabinoid concentrates or cannabinoid extracts, and which is licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission. Processing does not include packaging or labeling.  

Marijuana Production. A building or structure used in whole or in part for producing recreational marijuana as defined 

in Chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, as the manufacture, planting, cultivation, growing or harvesting of marijuana, and 

which is licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission. Producing does not include drying or cultivation of 

immature plants received from a producer, or the cultivation and growing of an immature marijuana plant by a 

processor, wholesaler, or retailer if that party purchased or otherwise received the plant from a licensed producer.  

Marijuana Retail Sales. A building or structure used in whole or in part for retail sales to a consumer of marijuana, 

cannabinoid products, and miscellaneous items, and which is licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission.  

Marijuana Testing Laboratories. A building or structure used in whole or in part for testing of marijuana items, and 

which is licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission.  

Marijuana Wholesale Operations. A building or structure used in whole or in part for wholesale distribution of 

marijuana, cannabinoid products, and miscellaneous items to a person other than a consumer, and which is licensed by 

the Oregon Liquor Control Commission.  

16.38 SPECIAL USES 

16.38.030 Recreational Marijuana Facilities. 

A. Characteristics:  

1. Five types of recreational marijuana facilities are defined in Section 16.010.20.  

2. Recreational marijuana facilities must be licensed by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission. A facility not licensed 

by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission is not permitted in any zone. 

B. Approval Process. Where permitted, recreational marijuana facilities are subject to approval under 16.72.010.A2, the 

Type II process in addition to any other required land use review process required by this Code. Applications for 

approval shall include detailed responses to the applicable standards listed in this section. 

C. Standards for Recreational Marijuana Production, Processing, Testing Laboratories, and Wholesale Operating Facilities 

1. All new construction of marijuana facilities shall comply with 16.90 Site Planning. 

2. In the case of production facilities, views from the exterior of the building into the production area are prohibited. 

Views of interior lighting in the production area from the exterior of the building are also prohibited. 

3. Only indoor recreational marijuana production is allowed. Exterior growing is prohibited for commercial 

distribution. 

4. Public Access Prohibited. Access to any production, processing, testing laboratory and wholesale facility shall be 

limited to employees, personnel, and guests over the age of 21, authorized by the facility operator.  



5. Security Measures Required 

a. Landscaping shall be continuously maintained to provide clear lines of sight from public rights-of-way to all 

building entrances. 

b. Exterior lighting shall be provided and continuously maintained. 

c. Any security bars installed on doors or windows visible from the public right-of way shall be installed interior to 

the door or window, in a manner that they are not visible from the public right-of-way. 

d. No outdoor storage is allowed at any recreational marijuana facilities. 

6. Odor Mitigation Measures Required. Production and processing facilities shall install and maintain enhanced 

ventilation systems designed to prevent detection of marijuana odor from adjacent properties or the public right-

of-way. Such systems shall include the following features: 

a. Installation of activated carbon filters on all exhaust outlets to the building exterior; 

b. Location of exhaust outlets a minimum of 10 feet from the property line and 10 feet above finished grade; and 

c. Maintenance of negative air pressure within the facility; or 

d. An alternative odor control system approved by the Building Official based on a report by a mechanical engineer 

licensed in the State of Oregon, demonstrating that the alternative system will control odor equally or better 

than the required activated carbon filtration system. 

7. Proximity Restrictions. A recreational marijuana production, processing, testing laboratory or wholesale sales 

facility shall not be located within 100 feet of any single-family residential or multi-family residential zone. For 

purposes of this paragraph, the distance specified is measured from the closest points between property lines of 

the affected properties.  

8. No recreational marijuana facility may be located within the Old Town Overlay District. 

D. Standards for Recreational Marijuana Retail Sales Facilities. 

1. All new construction of retail marijuana facilities shall comply with 16.90 Site Planning. 

2. Public Access Prohibited. Access to a retail sales facility shall be limited to employees, personnel, and customers 

over the age of 21. 

3. Hours of Operation. Retail sales facilities shall operate only between the hours of 10:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. all days 

of the week. An individual facility may set hours within those specified, but may not be open outside those 

parameters. 

4. Security Measures Required. 

a. Landscaping shall be continuously maintained to provide clear lines of sight from public rights-of-way to all 

building entrances. 

b. Exterior lighting shall be provided and continuously maintained consistent with Section 16.154.  

c. Any security bars installed on doors or windows visible from the public right-of way shall be installed interior to 

the door or window, in a manner that they are not visible from the public right-of-way. 

5. Mobile or Temporary Businesses Prohibited. A retail sales facility may not operate as a mobile or temporary 

business as defined in Section 16.10.020. 

6. Drive-in or Drive-Through Facilities Prohibited. A retail sales facility shall not have a drive-in or drive-through 

facility, as defined in Section 16.10.020. 



7. Proximity Restrictions. A retail facility shall not be located within the specified proximity of any of the uses listed 

below. For purposes of this paragraph, the distance specified is measured from the closest points between 

property lines of the affected properties. 

a. Schools. Within 1,000 feet of a public or private elementary or secondary school attended primarily by children 

under 19 years of age. 

b. Other Retail Facilities. Within 1,000 feet of another retail recreational marijuana facility or any medical marijuana 

dispensary. 

c. Public Plazas and Active Use Parks. Within 1,000 feet of a public plaza or active use park. As used in this 

paragraph, an active use park includes a public park which includes features such as playground equipment, 

athletic courts or fields, active use water features, or skating or skateboard features. 

Proposed Sherwood Land Use Zoning By License Type 

 Neighborh
ood 
Commercia
l 

Office 
Commercial 

Retail 
Commercial 

General 
Commercial 

Light 
Industrial 

General 
Industrial 

Employ-
ment 
Industrial 

Recreational 
Marijuana 
Producer 

N N N N P1 P 1 N 

Recreational 
Marijuana 
Processor 

N N N N P 1 P 1 P 1 

Recreational 
Marijuana 
Wholesale 
Operator 

N N N P 1 P 1 P 1 P 1 

Recreational 
Marijuana Retail 
Sales Operator 

N N N P 1 P 1 P 1 P 1 

Recreational 
Marijuana 
Laboratory and 
Testing Facility 

N P 1 P 1 P 1 P 1 P 1 P 1 

N= Not Permitted 

P= Permitted 

 

                                            
1 Subject to the Special Use Criteria, Recreational Marijuana Facilities § 16.38.030 
 
NOTE: The footnote number will change depending on where it is inserted in the table within the Sherwood Zoning and 
Development Code. 



 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

DRAFT 
Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 

 

Police Advisory Board 

Date & Time:  Thursday April 21, 2016 7:00 pm 

Location:  Sherwood Police Community Room 

20495 SW Borchers Dr., Sherwood, OR 
 

 

 

 

This meeting was not video recorded. 

 

1. Call to Order (Chair) 
 

Chair Zwingli called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call (Chair / Staff) 
 

Board Members Present: Chair Zwingli, Diane Foster, Sean Garland, Dave McCart and 
Amy Miller-Juvé 
 

Board Members Absent:  Vice Chair Silverforb, Rich Miller and Chris West  
 

Staff & City Council Liaison Present: Chief Jeff Groth, Executive Assistant-Angie Hass 
& Councilor Linda Henderson 
 

3. Approval of minutes (Chair) 
 

a. March 17th, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion was made by Sean Garland to approve the March meeting minutes. The motion 

was seconded by Diane Foster.  All Board Members voted in favor.   
 

 
 

P.A.B. Members: Council Liaison: 

Laurie Zwingli - Chair Linda Henderson  

Bob Silverforb - Vice Chair City Staff: 

Diane Foster Jeff Groth-Police Chief 

Sean Garland Angie Hass-Executive Assistant 

Dave McCart  

Rich Miller  

Amy Miller-Juvé  

Chris West  

Vacant  



DRAFT 
 

Police Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 6 

 

 
 

4. Business (Chair) 

 

a. Follow-Up Discussions:  

 

i. Police Staffing Study 

Chair Zwingli asked Chief Groth if the PAB would be invited to the Council 

discussions regarding decisions made based on the Police Staffing Study. 

Councilor Henderson stated that as of this time, it is not known.  She asked 

Chair Zwingli if the PAB is interested in attending Work Sessions, if scheduled.  

Chair Zwingli stated that she would at least like to be aware of scheduled Work 

Sessions.  Chief Groth suggested forwarding their request to City Manager, Joe 

Gall, and City Recorder, Sylvia Murphy.  Councilor Henderson will also mention 

this to the City Council.  The Chief shared that recent Council discussions 

involved Washington County coverage for the late night hours and that there 

is a lot involved with those discussions.  Sean Garland asked who directs the 

time lines?  The Chief stated that the Police Department does. Amy Miller-Juvé 

asked at what point do the citizens get to weigh in? The Chief stated that 

decisions are up to the Council and community members commenting at 

Council meetings.  If an opportunity arises at a Council meeting, that would be 

a good time to speak.   

 

ii. Recreational Marijuana-Community Feedback 

Chair Zwingli asked if anyone had come up with any ideas since the last 

meeting?  Sean Garland stated that a Work Session will be held next week 

(4/26) and that was helpful last time.  The Chief shared that hand-outs had 

been set at each Board Members seats, for their review (see Exhibits “A” and 

“B”.).  Amy Miller-Juvé stated that last time, the Board Members reached out 

to the community at different events and spoke to residents for input.  If they 

would consider doing that again this time, a few upcoming events she 

suggested were the Old Town Saturday Market (beginning May 7th) and 

Community Services Fair (5/21).   

 

Councilor Henderson explained how the process works.  Ordinances still need 

to be drafted for the recreational. Sean Garland asked if the PAB will provide 

input, as they did before.  Councilor Henderson stated that she hoped so.  Sean 

Garland queried as to how much more community input is needed now that 

the survey results are in.  There was discussion regarding the survey results.  

It was mentioned that at the April 5th council meeting, both ballot issues were 

approved and will be on the November election.  The next step is the Planning 

Commission getting their part set. A Work Session could be scheduled for June 

or July.   



DRAFT 
 

Police Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2016 
Page 3 of 6 

 

 

It was suggested that the Arts Festival at Veteran’s Park on June 4th could be 

a good time to chat with residents. Chair Zwingli asked the Board Members 

what they thought about attending the different community events.  Amy 

Miller-Juvé stated that she felt it was a very good idea.  She shared that a lot 

of people she speaks to don’t really understand what all is involved in the 

decision process.  It was suggested that Board Members can get information 

on-line, such as maps of different areas and bullets for discussion.  All 

members in attendance stated that they would like to do this.  Amy Miller-Juvé 

stated that it would be really helpful to learn more about the growing process 

before getting out and speaking to the residents.  The Chief stated that he will 

look into the different types of licenses and will ask Michelle Miller if she could 

have something prepared to give them at next week’s Work Session.  Audience 

member, Nancy Taylor, offered some suggestions, such as take maps with 

them to show community members.   

 

There was discussion regarding what possible impacts different decisions could 

make.  Since legalization is so new, reports are just now coming out from other 

states. Colorado has some results, but they are limited.  Sean Garland has 

heard concerns about burglary, crime, etc. surrounding the facilities.  Getting 

a good comparison might be difficult.  It seems like a genuine concern to him.  

The Chief agreed that it is a concern. Not only do people like cash, but pot as 

well.  Not a whole lot of data to show that it is a problem at this point, however.   

 

It was decided that Amy Miller-Juvé, Diane Foster, Sean Garland and Chair 

Zwingli will attend the Community Services Fair on 5/21. Councilor Henderson 

suggested getting a booth at the Community Services Fair, as it would be free.  

The Chief wondered if Michelle Miller from Planning would like to be involved 

as well.  He stated that he would check with her.  Saturday Market begins on 

May 7th. Dave McCart stated that he would be available 5/14 and Chair Zwingli 

said she will join him.  Amy Miller-Juvé and possibly Chair Zwingli will attend 

the Altered Art Festival on June 4th.   

 

b. Community Policing Presentation – Brian Kaufman, Director, Western 

Regional Community Policing Institute 

Chief Groth introduced Brian Kaufman.  Mr. Kaufman shared a bit about himself, 

including the fact that he is a resident of Sublimity, Oregon, as well as the Council 

President.  He stated that recreational marijuana will also be on their ballot. 

 

Community policing has been institutionalized in departments across the country and 

is alive and well in Sherwood.  Mr. Kaufman talked about the SARA problem solving 

model. (See Exhibit “C”.) 

 



DRAFT 
 

Police Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2016 
Page 4 of 6 

 

He recommended that Chief Groth modify the model for the Sherwood PD and to 

speak to the community.  Bigger cities are dealing with huge problems.  Sherwood 

does not deal with the bigger issues.  It is important to accurately define the problem 

and the actual goal. This allows Officers and community members to work together.   

 

In the near future, he will be presenting the SARA problem solving model to the 

Department and community during a two day training.   

 

Audience member, Nancy Taylor, asked about the role of the School Resource Officer. 

Mr. Kaufman stated that the School Resource Officer position is an important one, in 

every community.   

 

Sean Garland asked about social media. Mr. Kaufman stated that departments are 

getting more on board with the social media.  His thought is that face to face is better.  

Social media is a powerful tool to stay connected. 

 

An audience member asked how many communities he has worked with.  He replied 

approximately 500.   An audience member asked about the two day training and if it 

would be over a weekend, etc.  Mr. Kaufman replied that they have done it many 

different ways.  He is not a huge advocate of outside agencies coming in to tell Police 

Departments what to do.  He just makes recommendations.  The Police Departments 

and community members know best.   

 

Mr. Kaufman brought in challenge coins for each of the PAB Members and stated that 

he gives out when teaching the course.  He explained what was on the two different 

sides.  The coin is a reminder to participants what they are doing this job for.   

 

He will be in touch with the Chief so they can make the training good for the Officers 

and the community.   

 

Amy Miller-Juvé asked about statistics for before and after training.  Mr. Kaufman 

explained that it is up to the participants to identify and set goals, measure success, 

etc. independent for each group.  Amy asked if success is tracked.  Mr. Kaufman 

stated that it takes a lot of money and time.  They do check in with different cities to 

see how things are going.   

 

An audience member asked about funding.  Mr. Kaufman replied that 100% of this 

program is grant funded.   

 

Chief Groth provided a recap of the Strategic Community Policing & Problem Solving 

training that he, Chair Zwingli, Vice Chair Silverforb and Captain Daniel attended in 

February. Booklets were provided for all Board Members (see Exhibit “D” – booklet 

cover page).   



DRAFT 
 

Police Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2016 
Page 5 of 6 

 

 

Mr. Kaufman commented on the recent staffing study. He shared that SARA is a very 

time and staff intensive program and is intended for bigger cities with bigger issues.  

Can use first page as guide. Will be back to do training with officers and supervisors.  

Explained current process for traffic complaints.  The plan is to change up current 

process to include the problem solving worksheet.  Hoping to be more efficient and 

make better impact.  Currently, the City has many traffic issues.  Traffic is one that 

they may consider using the SARA model for.  After the Department training, they 

will then offer an opportunity to Board Members for discussion and input.   

 

The Chief stated that Sherwood PD is always going to look for ways to improve.  Mr. 

Kaufman shared that they have a new app that they have not yet released.  Thinking 

it might be a good idea to do initial release in Sherwood.  Also explained a little more 

about the problem solving worksheet.  The Chief shared a how a recent resident 

complaint was assigned to Officer Keesee who then sat down and worked out a plan 

to resolve the issue(s).  He had just received the final report that day which showed 

how the situation has improved and is no longer an issue.   

 

Chair Zwingli thanked Mr. Kaufman for attending. 

 

5. Councilor News 

Shred Event this Saturday, 4/23, at the PD, from 10-1.  

 

Budget meetings are coming up.   

 

Krueger and Elwert is major traffic issue/concern at this time.  The City has purchased 

property and plans to put in a round-about.  An Open House is being held for discussion 

on May 12th.   

 

At the April 5th Council Meeting, an attendee asked to pass an odor ordinance as they 

have been having issues with neighbors smoking, growing marijuana, etc.  This has a 

big effect on their family.  The Chief shared that staff has been working on some kind 

of a solution.   

 

Tip A Cop is May 14th at the Sherwood Rose’s from 8-3.   

 

Chair Zwingli asked about possible effects from second hand smoke from marijuana.  

The Chief stated that it is being looked into and that there is not an easy answer.   

 

6.  Staff report(s) 

Chief Groth stated that there is no staff report.   

 



DRAFT 
 

Police Advisory Board Meeting Minutes 
April 21, 2016 
Page 6 of 6 

 

Amy Miller-Juvé asked about Police Advisory Board applications.  The Chief stated that 

they have received 6-8 applications to date.   

 

7. Citizen Comment 

Dean Goodding – Commented on phone call he received.  He informed the Police 

Advisory Board that he hoped to take to City Council.  He announced that May 15th is 

the first day of National Police Week. He felt the community should be made aware of 

how the police put their life on the line.  He would like to see a sign put up somewhere 

in Sherwood for folks to see as they go through.  Sean Garland asked if they still have 

banners up at City Hall.  The Chief stated that they do put banners up each year. 

 

Tony Bevel – Stated that it was a good thing that PAB members will be going out to 

talk to citizens regarding recreational marijuana.  He stated that he hoped Board 

Members will keep it neutral.  He suggested having something (a display) set up at the 

library showing pros and cons. 

 

8. Adjourn (Chair) 

Chair Zwingli adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m. 

 

Approval of Minutes: 
 

 

 

 

 

           

Chair Zwingli     Date 

 

Attest: 

 

 

           

Angie Hass, Executive Assistant  Date 



hassa
Text Box
Exhibit "A"















hassa
Text Box
Exhibit "B"









hassa
Text Box
Exhibit "C"



hassa
Text Box
Exhibit "D"




